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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

‘We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} specified under section 133 of the Aet., read with the Companies (Indian
Accounfing Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and defecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant fo the preparation and presentation of the Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS finaneial statements based on our audit. We have taken
info account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Aef and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in acsnrdance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance gbout
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
finaneial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation ofthe Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the eircumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation ofthe Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Opinion

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehenswe mcome, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date. 2

S5.R. Bat[ihei & Associates LLP, a Limiled Liabilily Partnership wilh LLP Icdenlity No. AAB-4295
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

(@)

(b)

©

(d

©

®

(g)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”™) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those boaoks;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of aceount;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Aecounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on Mareh 31, 2018, and taken on record
by the Board of Direetors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
{inancial statements — Refer Note 33 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivate contracts for which there were
any material foresecable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were requircd to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004.00,,

per Yogesh Midha
Partner

Membership Nutber; 94941
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date; 18 May 2018
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph [1] of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: Nirja Publisher and Printers Private Limited (*the Company”)

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™

(vi)

(i)

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) All fixed assets were physical verified by the management in the previous year in accordance with the
planned propramme of verifying them once in two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regards to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

{(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in inciuded in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable interval during the year
and no material discrepancies noted on such verification.

(a) The Company has granted loan to two companics covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the term and condition of the loan are not prejudicial to the Company’s intercst.

(b} In respect of loan granted to the company covcred in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013, repayment of the principal amounts as stipulated and receipt of interest has been
regular.

{(c) There are no loan pranted to the companies, firms or other parties listed in the register maintained
under section 189 the Companies Act 2013, are outstanding for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to -us, there are no loan,
investment guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Accordingly, the provisions of clausc
3(v) of thc Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act 2013, for the product/services of
the Company.

{(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, cmployees® state insurance, income-tax, service tax/goods and service tax,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to customs
duty and excise duty are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income-tax, provident fund, service tax/goods and service tax, valuc added tax, cess and other
undisputed statutory ducs were outstandmg, at the period end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable. il
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(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

{c) According to the records of the Company, no dues outstanding of income tax on aecount of any
dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a finaneial institution or bank. The Company does
not have any dues to in respect of debenture holders or government,

According fo the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence,
reporting under clause (ix} is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approval mandate by the provision of section 197
read with schedule V fo the Companies Act 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a mdhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the
order are not applieable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the noies to the finaneial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or flly or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv} are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash fransactions with directors or persons connected with him,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partner

Membership No.: 949491
Place: New Delhi
Date: 18 May 2018

CAI Firm registration number: 101049W/530000 ‘

per Yogesh Midha
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NIRJA PUBLISHER AND PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Secfion 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nirja Publisher and Printers Private
Limited (*the Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduet of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Anuditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applieable to
an audit of internal finaneial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with cthieal requirements and plan and perform the andit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these finaneial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in afl material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain aundit evidence about the adequaey of the internal finaneial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these finaneial statements and their operating effeetivencss.
Our audit of internal finaneial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intcrnal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these finaneial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal eontrol
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selocted depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the finaneial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal finaneial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements ineludcs those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenanee of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaetions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordancc with generaily accepted accountmg pripeiples, and that receipts and expenditures of the eompany are
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being madc only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of eollusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and nof be deteeted. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with referenee to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial conirol over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respeets, adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting

with reference fo these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting -
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartercd Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrafion Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 94941
Place of Siznhature: New Delhi
Date: 18 May 2018
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Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Balance sheel as at 31 March 2018
CIN: U74899DLI971PTC005776

{(AmountinX)

Notes As at As at Asal
31 Varch 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016

Assels .
Non-current asscls
roperty, plant and equipment 3 66,563 686 18,994 759 20,749,792
Tntangible assets 4 - 85,978 330,132
Financial assets
- [nvestments 54 206,718,435 206,750,035 206,690,620
- Loans 5C 287,286,392 235,989,538 214,538,482
- Other financial assets 5E 70,939 10,939 70,939
Other non-current assets 7 80,068,594 81,654,731 66,279,161
TDreferred lax assels (net) 8 319,307 1,215,087 2,085,179
Total non-current assets 641,027,753 544,801,067 510,744,305
Current assets
[nventories 4] 13,602,767 9,465,907 8,438,040
Tinaneial assets
- Trade receivables 5B 168,020,648 192,762,763 262,707,070
- Loans 5C 94,129 152,329 703,925
- Cash and cash equivalents 5D 5,066,551 203,252 491,954
- Other financial assels 5 6,840,318 - -
Other current assels 7 5,198,828 4,719,516 8,110,468
Total current assets 198,823,243 207,303,767 230,451,457
Total asscts 839,850,996 752,104,834 791,195,762
Equity and liabilities
Equity
HEquity share capilal 9 120,000 120,000 120,000
Ciher cquity
- Retained eamings 10 664,165,126 631,073461 592,261,106
- Other reserves 10 54,200,000 54,200,000 54,200,000
Total equity 718,485,126 685,393,461 646,581,106
Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
RBormpwings 118 7,030,415 - -
Provisions 14 2,765,932 2,258,721 1,545,833
Total non current lHabilitics 9,796,347 2,258,721 1,545,833
Currenl liabilitics
Financial liabililics
- Borrowings 11A 42,639 207 38,068,946 85,710,957
- Trade payables 12 64,152,391 24 632,160 56,118,574
- Other Tinancial liabilitics 13 3,669,585 1,200,000 500,000
Provisions 14 98,220 91,563 90,541
(her current liabilities 15 1,009,120 459 983 648,751
Total curreut liabilitics 111,569,523 64,452,652 143,068,823
Total equity and liabilities 839,850,996 752,104,834 791,195,762
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the linancial slatements.

As per our reporl of even date

For 8.R, Batlibot & Associates LLP

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101045W/E300004

Chartered Accountants

Oy

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 9494 1

Place : New Delhi
Date : 18 May 2018

_Sayita-Glipta
DIN: 06053988

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nirja Publishers & Priaters Private Limited

DIN: 00854015




Wirja Poblishers & Printers Private Limited
Statemeot of Profit and Loss {or the year ended 31 arch 2018
CIN: U74899D1L1971PTCOOSTTG

{Amownt in )
Noles Torthe yearended  For (he year ended
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
I Revenue [tom operations 16 151,232,608 253,967411
o Other income 17 29,947,864 26,429,104
I Total Income (1+11) 181,180,472 280,396,515
IV Lxpenses
Cost of raw materials and comnponents consumed 18 78,609,208 153,757,298
(Increase)decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 20 (81,601) (3,908,494)
Publication expenscs 19 12,510,769 19,163,137
Selling and distrihulion expenses 21 3,422,620 4,253,164
Employee benefits expensc 22 19,496,624 19,619,642
Finance cost 24 2,924,688 8,712,538
Depreciation and amortisalion expense 23 2,983,150 3,467,768
Oller expenses 25 20,053,473 19,650,095
Total expenses 139,218,931 224,955,148
Y Profit before tax (LII-1V) 41,261,541 55,441,367
VI Tax expense: ,
Current lax 7,374 dd6 15,413,984
Income tax adjustinent relaled to carlier years 112,051 -
Deferrcd tax charge 837,158 989,467
Total tax expenses 8,323,755 16,403,451
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 32,937,786 39,037,916
VIl Other comprehensive incone
- [tems not he reelassified (o profit or loss in subseqnent year 26
Re-measureinent pains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 212,401 (344,937)
Tax iinpact on re-measurement gains/{losses} on defined bencfit plans (58,522 119,376
7 xs i g +
% Total CC.DII.'I[JI ellcn.s1ve Income for the ycar.(VI.I VI 33,091,665 38,812,355
(Comprising profit and other comprehensive incoine for the year)
X Earnings per equity share: 27
(1) Basic 2,745 3253
{2) Diluted 2,745 3,253
Suminasy of sigmificanl acecunting policies 2.1

The accoinpanying noles are an integral part of the financial stalemenls.
As per our report of even date

For 5.1%. Batliboi & Associates LLI
1CAY Firm Registration No, 101049W/E300004
Chartercd Accouniants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date : 18 May 2018

For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors of
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

DIN: 00053988
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Nirjo Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Cash {low sintement for the year ended 35 March 2048
CIN: U74899DL1971PTCO05776

{Amannt in I)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

{Amount in Rs.) {Amount in its.)
Cush fiow from operating activilies
Profit hefore iax 41,261,541 55,441,367
Adjnslment to reconcile profit hefore tax ta net cash flovs:
Depreciation & amortisation expenscs 2,983,150 3,467,708
Provision [or doubtfil debts writien back (205,436) (239,709}
Profil on sale of property, plant and equipnent (oet) - (420,622)
Tair valuation lpssf(pain) current investinent 31,600 (59,415)
Interest expense 2,488,025 8,707,089
[nterest income (29,525,140} {25,508,168)
Dividend income (1,300) {140}
Operafing profit belore worldnp capital changes 17,032,440 41,388,171
Movements in working capilal :
Increase /(decrease) in lade payables 39,520,231 (31,486, 414)
Increase /(dccicasc) in provisions 727,269 368,973
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabdities 549,137 {188,768)
Increase/(decrease) in olher [inancial Wabilities {500,000) 700,000
(Increase)/deercasc in trade receivables . 24,947,550 70,184,016
(Increase) /decrease in inventories (4,136,860) (1,027,868)
(bicrease)! decrease in loans and advances (238,943) 134,892
(Increase¥decrease in non current assets (4,737.31N 569,515
Cash generated [rom operaling activities 73,163,508 80,642,518
Divect laxes paid {net of refomda) (1,602,754} (28,008,111
Nct cash flow frow operating activities (A) 71,560,754 52,634,401
Cash flows lvom investing acfivities
Purchasc of fixed assets including work-in-progress and capital advance (30,466,100) - (7.473,634)
Dividends received 1,300 140
Proceed frown sale of fixed asscts - 6,425,675
[nvestment in fixed deposit having matwrity iore than 3 months (6,775,000) -
Loan piven to related partics (50,999,711} (21,034,352)
Interest reecived 29459822 25508 168
Net cash flow from investing activitics (D) (78,779.689) 3,425,997
Cash flows from financing activities
Proeeeds [rom long-term borrowing 10,000,000 -
Proceed from shon-term borrowings 4,570,261 -
Repayment of shorl term borrowing - (47,642,011)
Interest paid (2,188,025) (8,707,089)
Net cash used in in financing activitics (C) 12,082,236 (56,349,100)
Netinerease im cash and cash equivalends (A + B+ C) 4,863,301 (288,702}
Cash and cash equivalents at the bepinmyg of the year 203252 491,954
Cash and cash eqmivalents at ihe end of the year 5,066,553 203,252
Compunents of ¢asb and cash eqnivalents
Cash on hand 10,881 5,602
Cheques in hand 4,825,447 -
Balances with banks
- on current account 230,225 197,650
"Total cash and cash eqnivalents (note 14) 5,066,553 203,252
Reconciliation of liabifities arising from financing activities

L.ong term

Partionars ] borrowings Shori I-e‘rm
(including current borrowings

maturities)
As at 31 March 2017 - 38,068,946
Cash llows 7,030,415 4,570,261
Non cash changes - -
As at 31 March 2058 7,030,415 42,638,207
Surmmary of significanl accounting policies 2.1
For S.R. Bailihoi & Assaciates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of /

Nirja Publishers & Printcrs Private Limited

L[CAI Firm Registration No. 101049YW/E300004
Chartered Acconntants e

per Yogesh Midha
Partner '
Membership No.: 9494

Place : New Delbi
Date : 18 May 2018
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Nirja Publisbers & Printers Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: UT489¢DL1$7IPTC005776

A, Equily share capital;

No, of shares Amountin ¥
Issned, subscribed and {ully paid up {share of Is. 10 each)
Al 1 April 2016 12,000 120,000
At 31 March 2017 : 12,000 120,000
At 31 March 2018 12,000 120,000
B. Other equity
| Reserve & Surplus | Total
| Retained carniogs | General reserve | j
As at 1 April 2016 592,261,106 - 54,200,000 646,461,106
Profit lor the year 39,037,916 - 39,037,916
Other comprehensive income for the vear (225,561) - (225,561)
Total Comprehensive Tucoine for the year 38,812,355 - 38,812,355
As at 31 March 2017 631,073 461 54,200,000 685,273,461
Profit for the year 12,937,786 - 32,937,786
Other comprehensive income for the year 153,879 - 153,879
Total Comprehensive Ineome for the year 33,091,665 - 33,091,665
As at 31 March 2018 664,165,126 54,200,000 718,365,126
Summary of significant accounting policies {refev note 2.1)
For S.R. Bailiboi & Assoeintes LLP TFor and on behalf of the Board nf Direetors nf
ICAT Tirm Repistration No, 101049Y/E300004 Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Chartered Aceouutanis
'

-~ " : /, e
W Centhorom 111 o
_,“-n-"""'d"‘“”'mv ‘f ! ;r‘/—‘”,
~Survfta Gupta Himapghu Gupta
DIN: 00053988 DRt 00054015

per Yopesh Nidha
Pariner
Membership No.: 94941

rememn

Place : New Delhi
Dale : 18 May 2018




Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1971PTC005776

Notes to finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1

2.2

a.

—

Corporate information

Nitja Publishers and Printers Private Limited (thc company) is a private company incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956. The company is wholly owned subsidiary of 8 Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S
Chand and Company Private Limited). The registered office of the company is locaied at 7361, Ram Nagar, Qutab Road,
Delhi- 110055, The company is primarily engaged in printing and binding of books for § Chand Group.

These are standalone financial statcmenls and, accordingly, these Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial
statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company only. These financial stalement were authorised
for issue in accordance with the resolution of directors on 18 May 2018,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statcments of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended from time to time

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Cormpanics Act, 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 and Companics {Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016 {(Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are the first the
Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Reconciliation and descriplion of effect of transition to Ind AS has
been summarised in Note 44,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair valuc (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in INR (Indian Rupees).
Summary of significant accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An assel is classificd as current when it is:
¢ Ixpected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
+ Held primarily for the purposc of trading
+ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at lcast twelve months
afier the reporting petiod.

All other assets arc classilied as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:
¢ ltis expected to be settled in normal operaling cycle
e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢ It is dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for al least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
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)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purposc of classification of its assels
and liabilities as current and non-current.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational enrrency

The Company’s financial stateinents are presented in INR, which is alse the Company’s functional currency. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environtnent in which an entity operates and is normally the curreney
in which the entity primarily generales and expends cash.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currcncies are initially recorded by the Company al the functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies {or recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair valne measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments al fair value at cach reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transier a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement datc. The fair valuec measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction

to sell the assct or transler the liability takes place cither:

» in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the imost advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions thal market participants would use when prieing
the asset or liability, assuming that market partieipants act in their economie best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into aecount a market participant's ability to generate economie
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation lechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data arc
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemen(s atre calegorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 -— Quoted {unadjusied) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

¢ Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directily or indirectly observable

o Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valuc measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are rccognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuer are involved for valuation of significant assets such as valuation of unquoted investments and significant
fiabilities such as contingent consideration, where ever applicable. Involvement of cxternal valuer is decided upon
annually by thc Company’s management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.

At cach reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and iabilities which
are requiredto be re-measured or re-asscssed as per the Company’s aceounting policies. For this analysis, the Company’s
management verifies thc major inpuls applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the informalion in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Revenne recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms ol payment and excluding taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government,

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measurcd al the fair value of the consideration recetved or

receivable, net of salcs returns, tumover diseounts and cash discounts.

The provision for anticipated returns, umover discount and cash discount is primarily made on estimated basis based on
historical trends, wherever applicable. ‘

Job Work
Revenue from Job work is recognized when printing and binding job is completc and accepted by the customer and all

significant risk and rewards relating to job work are translerred to customer. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it
is probable that the economic benefils will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
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Iuterest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
Interest ineoine is included under the head “other income™ in the stalement of profit or loss.

For all finaneial instruinents measwred at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest income is
reeorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the finaneial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the offective interest rate, the Company estimates (he expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to reccive dividend is established by the reporting date, which
is generally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

Ineome taxes
Income taxes eonsist of current taxes and changes in deferred tax liabilities and asscts.
Current income tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income [or the year as determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are ineasured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are thosc that are enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
eomprehensive income or in eqnity), Current tax ilems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in other comprehensive income (OCI) or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjcct to inlerpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

-and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting dale.

Delerred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

®  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss )

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the lemporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeablc future. '
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Delerred tax assets are recogriscd for all deductible temporary differcnees, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are rccognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable prolit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utiliscd, excepl:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
assel or liability in a transaction that is nol a business combination and, at the time of the (ransaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with invesiments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint arrangements, deferred tax assels are recognised only to the cxtent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

In the situations wherc the company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax
laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is reccognized in
respect of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the company’s gross total income
is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which teverse
after the tax holiday period is recognized in the period in whieh the temporary differences originate. However, the
Company resiricts recognition of deferred tax assels to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of
deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting datc and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assct to be utilised.
Unrccognised deferred tax assets arc rc-assessed at each reporting date and are reeognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, Deferred tax items
arc recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or dircetly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforeeable right exists to sct off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable cntity and the sanie taxation authority.

Minitmum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a period is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that therc is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be cairied
forward. In the period in which the Company recognizes MAT eredit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said
asset Is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement,” The
Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
company does not have Convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
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f.) Property, plant and equipmeut

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment as at 1% April 2016, were carried in the
balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all its item of property, plant
and equipment as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, as at 1 April 2016.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated al cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, ifany. The cost comprises purchase price, cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition crileria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parls as individual assets with specific uscful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when
{uture economie benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the differcnee between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profil or loss when the asset is
derccognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon dispesal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-rcecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment

Till 31 March 2017, depreciation on property, plant and cquipment was being provided on written down value method.
W.e.f. 1* April 2017, depreciation is being provided on straight line method.

Depreciation on property, plant and cquipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful

economic lifc of the assets.

Followings arc the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Uscful life as adepted by Useful life as pcr Schedule IT
management
Plant and equipment 25 years . 15 years
Furniture and fixture 10 years 10 years
Office equipment 5 years 5 ycars
Vehicle 10 years & years
Computer 6 years 3 years
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g)

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less. Assets
costing ¥ 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

Second hand machinery purchased during the year is depreciated considering its useful life based upon management’s
assessment is 15 years.

The Company, based on techniecal assessmenl inade by teehnical experl and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, eomputers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Acl, 2013. The management believes that these cstimated uscful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GA AD), intangible assets were carricd in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

On transition to Ind AS, The Company has elected to continue with the earvying value for all its item of intangible assets
as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, as at 1% April 2016.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if'any. Internally generated
intangible asscts, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditutrc is recogniscd in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred. )

Amortisation
The usetul lives of intangible assets arc assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with & finite useful life are reviewed at least al the end of each reporting period.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected patiern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are accounted for by changing the amorlisation period or method, as appropriate, and are trcated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with tinite lives is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the funclion of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tesled for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinile life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinitc life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.
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A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method nsed Internally
‘ generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite (5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Aequired
over the period of useful lives
Copyrights Finite (5 ycars) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of copyright
Goodwill on business | In-definite No amortization Acquired
combination

(ains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset ave measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised In the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Research and development costs
Rescarch costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual projeet is recognized as
an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate all the foliowing;:

¢ The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. Its intention
to complete the asset.

e Its ability to use or sell the asset, How the asset will generate fulure economic benefits
¢ The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset
o The ability to measure reliably the expenditure aliributable to the inlangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an assel, the cost model is applied requiring the
agset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amorttization of the
assct beging when development is complete and the asset is available for use. Tt is amortized on a straight line basis over
the period of expected future benefit from the related project. Amortization is recognized in the stalement of profit and
loss. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Borrowing eost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of gualifying asset are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs arc cxpensed in the period in which they are incurrcd.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of profit and loss during extended period
when active development activity of the qualilying assets is inletrupted.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of tunds. It
also includes exchanges differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the assel or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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i)

k.)

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, A lcase that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. An operating lease is a
leasc other than a finance lease.

Opcrating lease payments are recognised as an expensc in the staternent of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the leasc term.

Inventorics
Inventories arc valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs ineurred in bringing each product to its present loeation and cendition is accounted for as follows:

« Raw materials: eost includes cost of purchase and other eosts incurred in bringing the inventories Lo their present
location and condition. Cosl is determined on First in first out (FIFO) basis.

o Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on First in first out (FIFO) basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busincss, less estimated costs of completion
and the eslimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Impairment of nen—finanecial asscts

The Company assesses, al each reporting date, whether there is an indicalion that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication cxists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined [or an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those {rom other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amouat, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futurc cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In detcrmining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroboraled by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of thc Company’s CGUs Lo which the individual asscts are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a petiod of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year,

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer cxist or have decreascd. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU*s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the fast impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such rcversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, Lhe reversal is treated as a revaluation increasc.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recoghised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods,

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entily and a (inancial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. '

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial asscts are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair vaiue
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are allributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequenl measurement, financial asscts are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (EVTOCT)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e [quity insttuments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Dehbt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The assel is held within a business modci whose objeclive is to hold assets for collecting contractual eash flows, and

» Contractual torms ol the asset give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets arc subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effeetive intercst
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calenlated-by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an intcgrai part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss,
The losscs arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Debt instrument at FYTOCT

A debt instruments is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are mct:

¢ The objective of the business model is achieved both by collceting coniractnal cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes intcrest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the assef, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest carned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest income nsing the EIR method.

Debt instruments at FYTPL :
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not tmeet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classificd as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCIT
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognilion inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch?).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L,

Equity investments

All equity instrnments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a busincss combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, thc company may make an irtevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity insttument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&IL, even on sale
of investment. However, the company way transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category arc measured at fair valuc with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit & loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicablce, a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

derccognised (i.c. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

e The rights to rcecive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and cither (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Company has neither
transferrcd nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assct, but has transferred control of the assct.
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When the Company has transferred its rights lo receive cash flows from an asset or has catered inlo a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all ot the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the assct, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s conlinuing involvement, In that
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on 4 basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantec over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
repay.

Impatrment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss {ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: '

¢ Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securitics, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

o Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI

s Lcase receivables under Ind-AS 17.

¢ Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18.

¢ Loan commitments which are not measurcd as at FVTPL.

o Financial guarantee contracts whieh are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for rceognition of impairment loss allowance on:

o Trade receivables, and
® All lease reecivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

The application of sinplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowanee based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credil risk sinee initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL. is used. If, in a subsequent period, eredit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increasc in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverls lo recognising impairment loss
allowance based on [2-month ECL.

Lifctime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the cxpected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial
ingtrurment that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that arc due (o the Company in accordance with the contracl

and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When

estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

¢  All contractual terms of the finaneial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrament, However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be eslimated reliably, then the cntity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

(%,9-/)"/
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e (Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhaneements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical cxpedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine iinpairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its trade reeeivables. The provision matrix is based on its historicaily observed default rates over the expeeted life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At cvery reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowanee (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other cxpenses’ in the statement of profit
& loss. The balanee sheel presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a) For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance,
i.c. as an integral part of the measurcment of those assels in the balance sheet. The allowanee reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets wrile-off criteria, the Company does not reduee impairment allowance from
the gross earrying amount,

b} Loan eommitmeuts and financial guarantee contraets: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sbect,
i.e. as a liability.

¢) Debt instruments measured at FYTOCK Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amouut is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
amount’ in the QCI,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk charaeteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable signifieant
increases in eredit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial Habilities

Luitial recognition and measurement _
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriatc.

All finaneial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the casc of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs,

Financial guarantee, issued in relation to obligation of subsidiaries are initially recognised at their fair value {as a part
of cost of investment in the subsidiary)

rd
The Company’s financial liabilitics include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depencls on their classification, as deseribed below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilitics
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classificd as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the statement profit or loss.
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Financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair value through prolfit or loss arc designated as such at the
initial date of reeognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 arc satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses aftributable o ehanges in own credit risk are reeognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity, All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Afler initial rccognition, interesl-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral parl of the EIR. The EIR
amertisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings,

Financial guarantee eontracts

Financial guarantee conlraets issucd by the Company are those conlraets that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in aeeordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amouni
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A linancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or caneelled or expires. When
an cxisting financial liability is replaeed by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
ol an existing liability arc substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original [iability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Re-classification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial asscts which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a chanpe in the business mode! for managing those
assels. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
ehange in the business model as a resull of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operalions. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model cccurs when the Company
either begins ot ceases to perform an activity that is signifieant to its operations, If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the ehange in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (ineluding impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offsetting of Finaneial Instruments

Finaneial assets and finaucial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet if
there is a cuirently enlorceable legal right to offsct the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneonsly.

m.) Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefit iu the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,

other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as an expeuse, when au employec renders the related seryice. :
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0.)

p)

If the contribulion payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for serviees received before the balauce sheet date, then
cxcess isrecognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, areduction in future payment
or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for its employees i.e. gratuity. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation at each reporting date,

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effeet of the assel ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liabilily and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts includec in net interest
on the net defined benetit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur, Re-measurcments are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave, which is cxpected Lo be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shorl-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Provisious

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outf{low of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effcet of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When diseounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a [inance cost.

Provisions are tcviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the eurrent best estimate. 1f it is no longer
probable that an outflow would be require to settle the obligation the provision is reversed,

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
ocenrrence or non-pccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because il is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rave cases where there is a [iability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloscs its existence
in the financial statements,

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a lcased facility. Decommissioning costs are provided
at the present value of cxpected costs to the settle the obligation using estimated cash flow and recognised as part of the
cost of the particular asset. The cash tlow are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as a finance cost. The cstimated future costs of decommissioning are revicwed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added or deducted from the cost of
the asset.
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q.) Cash and cash equivalents

r.)

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subjeet to an insignificant risk of changes in valuc.

" For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term

investments with an original maturity of threce months or less.
LEarnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders of
the eompany by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are ealeulated by dividing the profit or loss aliributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for
interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted [or the elfects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Standard issued but not yet cffective

Ind AS 115 was issued on 29 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to aceount for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. This standard is applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. Under Ind AS
115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
cxchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The presentation and disclosure requirements in Ind AS 115 are more detailed than under current Ind AS guidance. The
presentation requirements represcnt a significant change from current practice and significantly inereases the volume
of disclosures required in the company's financial staterments.

The new revenue recognition standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS.

The new standard permits two methods ot adoption: {a) full retrospective method (retrospectively to each prior reporting
period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Aecounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors), or
(b) Cumulative catch - up approach (retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance
recognized at the date of initial application).

The Company is still in the process of consideting the appropriate method of adoption.

Amendment to Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’: Disclosure initiative

The amendment requires entities to provide the diselosure of changes in their liabilities arising from finaneing activitics,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such an exchange foreign exchange gain/loss).

The Company has provided the information for both the current and the comparative period in the Cash Flow
Statements.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

(Amount in )

Plant & Furnitwre & . Office Leaschold
. . Yehicles . Computer . Taotal
equipment Fixtures e(uipment Improveeni
Cost?
Asal | April 2016 17,582,435 533,378 - 1,262,828 71,922 1,295,229 20,749,792
Additions 6,974,281 14,623 - 363,228 121,500 - 7,473,634
Dispasals (5,081,665) - - - - - (6,081,665)
At 3 March 2017 18,475,051 548,003 - 1,626,056 153,422 1,299,229 22,141,761
Additions 31,161,122 18,400,933 904,045 - - 50,466,100
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2018 49,636,173 548,003 18,400,933 2,530,101 193,422 1,299,229 72,607,861
Accumulated depreciation
Asat1 April 2016 - - - - - - -
Charge [or the year 2078233, 158,095 - 609,298 46,966 331,022 3223614
. Disposals (76,612) - - - - - (76,612)
At 31 Mavch 2017 2,001,621 158,095 - 609,298 46,966 331,022 3,147,002
Charge Ior the year 1,736,149 54,950 515,652 229,143 23,947 337331 2,897,172
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2018 3,731,770 213,045 515,652 838,441 70,913 668,353 6,044,174
Mef hloclk
As at 1 April 2016 17,582,435 533,378 - 1,262,828 71,922 1,299,229 20,749,792
As at 31 March 2017 16,473,430 389,908 - 1,016,758 146,456 968,207 18,994,759
As at 31 Macch 2018 45,898,403 334,958 17,885,281 1,691,660 122,509 630,876 66,563,087
Note: Cost as ot April 1, 2016 is calealated as shown helow:
I Filunt & Furnj.rure & Vehicles 'OITH:e Compater Leaschold Total
equipmenl Fixtures equipmeni Iniprovemeni
Gross hlock 28,551,175 1,220,083 - 5,561,253 1,155,855 1,471,878 37,960,244
Accunulated depreciation {10,968,740) {686,705) - (1,298425)  (1,083,933) (172,649)  (17,210,452)
Deemed Cost as at 1 April 2016 17,582,435 533,378 - 1,262,828 71,922 1,299,229 20,749,792

Note:

Since the company has changed its estimaic of depreciation on property, plant and equipment fron Gnancial year 201 7-18, impact olclapge is given in below toble:

Particular

Amount in INR

Depreciation as per writlen dowa valoe 6,766,075
Deprecialion as per straight [me method 2,897,172
Profit imereased by 3,868,903
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4. Intangible assels

(Amount in X)

License Fees for

Total

Publication Righis

Cost*
Asat | April 2016 330,132 330,132
At 31 Mareh 2017 330,132 330,132
At 31 March 2018 330,132 330,132
Accenmnlated anortization
Asaf 1 April 2016 - .
Charge for the year 244,154 244,154
Disposals . -
At 31 Mareh 2017 244,154 244,154
Charge tor the year 85,978 85,978
Disposals -
At 3 Mareh 2018 330,132 330,132
Net htock
As at 1 April 2016 330,132 330,132
As at 31 March 2017 85,978 85,978
As at 31 March 2018 - -
Note: Cast as at April 1, 2016 is ealewlated as shown below:
Liceuse Fees [or -
. Pnhlication Rights Total
Gross block 3,761,252 3,761,252
Accunulated amorlizalion (5,431,120) (5,431,120}
Deemed Cost as at 1 April 2016 330,132 330,132

~ The Company has availed (be deemed cost exemption and nsed the previons GAAP carrying amoit of property, plant and equipment as deemed cost.
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5,

Financial assets

5A. Noo- currenl investmenis

A.

B

5B.

SC.

(Amouut in %)

As ai As at As al
31 March 2058 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Trade investments {valned at cost nnless stated otherwise)
Inyesiments in cquity shares (Unquoted)
Investinents in snbsidiary of holding company
17,783,000 (31 March 2017: 17,785,000 and 1 April 2016: 17,785,000} equity shares m Safari Digital 177,850,000 177,850,000 177,850,000
Education Initiative Private Linited ‘
801 (31 March 2017: 801 and 1 April 2016: 8013 equity shares in Vikas Publishing Honse Private Liwniled 28,695,165 28,695,165 28,695,165
106,545,165 206,545,165 206,545,165
Tnvestiments at Faie value throngh prolit and Inss
Twvestments in equity shares (Guoted)
500 (31 March 2017: 500 and 1 April 2016: 500) shores of Rs. 10 gach filly paid up in State Bank of 124,950 146,700 97,125
India
200 ((31 Mareh 2017: 200 and 1 April 2016; 200) shares of Its. 10 each folly paid up in Oriental Bauk of’ 18,320 28,170 18,330
Conunerce
143,270 174,870 115,455
Investments in Governmend and Trust secorities (Ungnoted)
National Savings Certificales 30,000 30,000 30,000
30,000 30,000 30,000
Net investments 206,718,435 206,750,035 206,690,620
Agpregate amaunt of quoted investments 143,270 174,870 115,455
Aggregafe amonnt of nnguoted invesimends 106,575,165 206,575,165 206,575,165
Apgregale amonnt of impairment in value of investmenls - - -
Trade receivables
(Amount in %)
As ot As at As at

31 March 2018

31 Mareh 2017

1 April 2016

Trade receivables
Unsecueed, considered good

Receiynble fromn related pariies (vefer nols 32) 168,020,648 192,762,763 262,707,070
Douhiful 747,250 952,686 1.192,395
168,767,898 193,715,449 263,899,465
Less: Allowance for expecied credit loss
Unsecured considered gnod
Doubtfil (747,250) (952,686) (1,192,395}
{747,250} (952,686) 1,192,395}
Net trade receivahles
Unsecured cousidered good 168,020,648 192,762,763 262,707,070
Trade reecivables firom related parties (refer note 32) 168,767,858 193,358,318 263,898,043
The movement in imprirment of trade receivalles is as Mollows:
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2015
Opening balance 952,686 1,192,345 -
Additions/ {Reversals) (205,136} (239,709) 1,192,395
Closing balance 747,250 952,686 1,192,395
No trade receivables are due from director or other officer of the Company either severally or jointly with any other perseu.
Loans
{Amoeunt in X)
Asat As at Asal
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Securily deposits - Neu- cucrent 1,084,467 787,324 370,620
Secwity deposits - Current 53,870 114,999 667,925
Loan to related parties (refer wote 32) 286,201,925 235,202,214 214,167,862
Loans to ewployees 40,259 37330 36,000
Total 287,380,521 236,141,867 215,242,407
Curreut 94,129 152,329 703,925
Non-Correul 287,286,092 235989538 214,538,482

e
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5D. Cash and cash egnivalents

TI\.

.

(Amonnt in X)

Asat
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
L April 2016

31 Barch 2018

31 March 2017

Balances with banks

- In corment accounls 230,225 197,650 482,496
Cash m hand 10,831 5,602 9,458
Cheques i hand 4,825,447 - -
Toml 3.066,553 203,252 491,954
Currend 5,066,553 203,252 491,954
Non-Current - - -

. Oiher financial assels
(Amount in ¥)
As at As at As al

1 April 2016

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 inonths 6,715,000 - -
Depogits wilh original maturity for more (han 12 months 50,200 50,200 30,200
Inlerest accrued but not due on fixed deposits (on short tenn deposits) 65,318 - -
Inlerest accrued bul not due on fixed deposils {on long term deposils) 20,739 20,73% 20,739
Total 6,911,257 70,939 70,939
Current 6,340,318 - -
Non-Curreni 70,939 70,939 70,939
Inventories

{Amount in X)

As at Asat As at

31 March 2018

3 March 2017

1 April 2016

Raw malerials and components 5,971,421 1,916,162 4,856,789
Stores and spares 4,046,542 4,354,002 3,581,251
Seni finished goods 3,584,804 3,195,653 -
Tatal 13,602,767 9,465,907 8,438,040
Current 13,602,767 9,465,907 8,438,040
Nou-Current - - -
Other asscts
Prepaid cxpenses
(Awounl in ¥
As at As at As at

31 dMarch 2048

31 Blarch 2017

L April 2016

Prepaid expenses (Mon current) 96,500 RO,83 113,669
Prepaid expenses (Curent) 533,165 247,565 800,240
Tatal 629,665 328,048 913,909
Other assets
(Amount in X}
As at As at As at

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Advances recoverable in eash or kind

MAT credit entillement (Mon current)

MAT credit cotitlemnent (Current)

Inconie tax recoverable (aet of provision for Lax)
Balance with statulory / government aulhontics
Tolal

Cuwrreut
Non-Corrent

1,938,124 229,963 213,617
69,278,510 62,836,835 64,224 201
- 4,241,988 7,096,610
10,693,984 18,777,413 1,941,292
2,734,539 - -
84,638,157 86,086,199 73,475,720
5,198,828 4,719,516 8,110,468
80,068,994 81,694,731 66,279,161
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8. Deferred faxes

(Amomnt in X}

As at
31 Mareh 2018

As at
31 Mareh 2017

As at
1 April 2016

Items leading to ereation of deferrerd tax assets

Tmpact of expendilure charged to the slatewnent of profil and loss account in the current year but allowed
for tax purposcs on paymeol basis m subscquent years

Fixed assets: immpact of differences between lax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged in the

financial statements
Others

Total deferred (ax assefs

Ttems leading to ereation of deferred tux liabilities
Fixed assets: impact of diflcrences betwese tex depreciation and depreciatiory anortization charged in e

financial slatements
Others

Total deferred tax liabilitics

Net deferred {ax assets

1,170,739 613,670 1,252,931

. 708,674 856,099
35,128 - -

1,205,867 1,322,344 2,109,030
836,360 - -

- 107,257 23.851

886,560 107,257 23,851

319,307 1215087 2,085,179

(This space has been intentionally lefi ank)




Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Notes (o [inancial statement ns at 31st Mareh 2008
CIN: U74899DL19711PTC005776

9,

10.

Share Capital

{(Amount in T)

Asal As at As af
31 Mayeh 2018 31 Marveh 2017 1 April 2016

Anthorised .
100,000 (31 March 2017: 100,000 and 1 April 2016: 100,000} equity shares of Rs 10/- each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Yssued, subscribed and Gdly paid up
12,000 (31 March 2017: 12,000 and 1 Apnl 2016: 12,000) cquity shares of Rs 10/ cach 120.000 120,000 120,000

120,000 120,000 120,000
a. Reconciliation of the equity shares ountsianding at (he begiuning and at the end of (he reporting year

Numbhers {Amount iu %)

Issued, snliscribed and fully paid up
Asal T April 2016 12,000 120,000
Issued dunng the year - -
As at 31 March 2017 12,000 120,000
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2018 12,000 120,000

L. Terms/ vighis attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of eqidly shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is eufitled Lo one vote per share. The Company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed hy the Board of Directors is subject (o the approval of the shareholders in the ensniug Annual General Meeting, In
the event of liquidation of the Company, the belders of equity shaves will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, alter distribution of all preferential awoimls.

The distribution will be in proportion lo the number of equity shares held by (he sharcholders.

¢. Shares held by holding company and their subsidiaries

Asat As al Asal
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
S Chand and Company Linsled (formerly S Chand and Company Privale Limited) 120,000 120,000 120,000

600 (31 March 2017: 600) shares held in the name of Mr, Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala as nominee or
benefieial interest of § Chand and Company Limiled (Fonnedy S Chand and Conpany Private Liamited)
(31 Mareh 2016: 600) shares held in the name of Mis. Nizmala Gupla as nondunee or beneficial interest off
S Chand and Company Limiled {Fonnerly § Chand and Company Private Limited))

d. Details of shaveholders holding miore thau 5% equity shares in the Company:

No. of shares held

%o of hnlding

§ Chand and Company Limited, the Holding Comnpaay (fonuerly § Chand and Conpany Privale Limited)

As at 1 Aprl 2016 12,000 100%
As at 31 March 2017 12,000 100%
Asat 31 March 2018 12,000 100%
Other equity

{Amount in %)

As at
31 March 2058

As at
31 March 2017

Retained earning

Balance as per last financial statemenls
Add: Surplus duing the year

Balaoce as the end of reporting year

General reserve

Balance a5 per last finaneial slatements
Incrzase/(decrense) during Lhe year
Balance as the end of reporting year

631,073,461 $92.261,106
33,091,665 38,812,353
664,165,126 631,073,461
54,200,000 54,200,000
54,200,000 54,200,000
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11.

11A.

11B.

Borrowings

Current borrawings

(Amount in X)

As at
31 harch 2018

Asat
31 March 2017

As aft
1 April 2016

Vehiele loaus
Lndian rupee loan liom bank (secured) (refer nole ¢! below)

Cash credii

Indian rupee loan Fom HBTC Bank (sceured) (refer note 'a’ below)
[ndian nipee loan fom Siate Bank of hadia (secured) (reter note b" below)
Banik overdrafl

Tatal

Less: Amount presented under "other financial liabililies”
Taotal

Secured
Yusecnred

2,965,585 - -
- 38,068,946 25,710,957
37,146,069 - -
5,493,138 - -
45,608,702 38,068,046 85,710,057
2,969,585 . -
42,639,207 38,068,946 5,710,957
42,639,207 38,068,946 85,710,957

Cash credil from HDFC Bank and carries inlerest rate ranging from 11.25% to 11.30% p.a. The loan is repayable on deinand. The loan {s secured by (i) hypothecation of current
assels {present and ftre) (i) hypothceation of fixed asscts (present and Malure, cxeept financed by other bank and [naneial nstitutions} (i) Corporale guarantee of § Chand and
Company Limiled (Formerly § Chand and Company Privale Lmdled) and (iv) personal guarantee ol r. Daesh Kwar Jhujimuwala and M. [Tinanshn Gupla. This facility has

beea repaid during the year.

Cash credit [rom State Bank of [ndia taken during the year and cavrics intcrest rte ranging from 8.35% to 10.75% p.a. The loan is repayable on demand. The loan is secured by
{i) hypolhecation ol current asscls {present and futurc) (i) bypothecalion of fixed asscts (present and fuhure, excepl fnanced by other bank and finaneial mstilutions) (i}

Covporate guaranice 08 Chand and Company Limiled (Fonnerly 8 Chand and Company Private Limited).

Vehicle Loan [Fomn HDFC Bank taken duving the year and carrics interest rate @ 8.26% p.a. The logn is repayable in 37 montlty mstalhnents of Rs. 307,072, The loan is seenred

by hypothecation of the sespective vehicles.

MNon-current borrowings

(Amounl in XY

As at
31 Marvch 2018

Velticle leans

Asat
31 March 2017

As at
LApril 2016

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Trdian mpee loan from bank (sccured) (refer note 'c' abave) 7030415 - -
Total 7,030,415 - B
Seeured 7030415 - -
Unseeured - - -
. Trade payables
As at Asat As at

1| April 2016

Current

Trade payables of micro enterprses and small enterprises (refer note 34}
Trade payables ol related entities (reler nolc 32)

Trade payables olher lhan micro enterpnses and siuall enlerprises

Taotal Trade payables

Curren(
Non current

2512418

22,281,975 .
41,870,416 24,632,160 53,606,156
64,152,391 24,632,160 56,118,574
64,152,391 24,632,160 56,118,574
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13. Other Minaneinl liabilities

14.

15.

As at Asat As al
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Security deposit payable 700,000 1,200,000 500,000
Currenl malurity of long tern loaus (refer note 11A) 2.969 385 R .
Total 3,669,585 1,200,000 500,000
Currentl 3,669,585 1,200,000 500,000
Non enrrenl - . -
Provisions

Asat Asal Asat

31 March 2018

31 Marel 2017

1 April 2016

Provision for gratuity (Non current) 2,765,932 2,258,721 1,545,833
Provision for gratuity {Current) 48619 40,425 26,229
Provision for leave ensaslunent 50,601 51,138 64,312
Total ' 2,863,152 2,350,284 1,636,374
Currenl 99,220 91,563 90,541
Non correnl 2,765,932 2,258,721 1,545,833
Other liabilities
As at As at Asnt

31 Morch 2018

31 March 2047

1 April 2016

Other payables:
Slatutory does
Total

Currenl
Non euvreent

1,009,120 459,983 648,751
1,009,120 459,983 648,751
1,009,120 459,983 648,751




i

Nirja Publishers & Printers Privale Limited
Notes to linancial statements Tor the year cnded 31 Morch 2018
CIN: U4899DL1971PTCO05776

16. Reveme from operations

{Amomnl in )

For the year ended

31 March 2018

Tor the year endcd
31 NMarch 2017

Salc of producis

FFinmished books 110,606,945 250,753,216
Other operafing revenues
Joby work 38,791,631 -
Sale ol raw 1natenials - 1,375,035
Scrap sales 1,834,032 1,839 160
151,232,608 253,967,411
17. Other income
a. Finance income
(Amount in )

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018

Fur the year ended
31 March 2017

[nterest mcoine on .
Bank deposits
Others
Inceine tax reflind
Unwinding of discownl on securily depesit paid

b, Other income

72,576 -
29,452,564 25,508,168
358,892 -

{111,304) 79,521
29,772,728 25,587,689

{Amonot in T)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Dividend income on non-¢urrent investments

Fair value gain/{loss) on financial mstroment at fairc valne irough profit and loss
Profit on sale of property, plant and eqnipment (net)

Provision for doublful debts wrtten back

Miscellaneous income

T'otal other income (ath)

18. Cost of raw inaterials and componcuts consumed

1,300 140
{31,600) 59415

- 420,622
205,436 239,709

- 121,529
175,136 841,415
29,947,864 26,429,104

(Amount in T)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the ycar ended
31 March 2017

Raw materials consumed
[nvenlory at the beginning of Lhe year
Add : purchases during the year

Less: inveutory al (e end of'the year
Cost of raw matcrials and components consnmed

Details of raw malerial and components purchased

1,916,162 4,856,789
82,664,467 150,816,671
4,580,629 155,673,460
5,571 421 1,916,162
78,609,208 153,757,298

Tor (he yenr ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2017

Raw malerial {paper)
Glue (hat melt)

PS Plaies

Ink

Cheinicals

Packing Malerial

Detnils of inventory
Raw materials
Paper

73,917,918 136,224,663
466,173 5,015,722
1,049,074 3,310,891
1,311 585 1,951,704

871,338 2,238,377
2,047,979 2,075.314

82,664,467 150,816,671

5971421 1.916,162
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19. Publicalion expenses

(Amount jn %)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Fnr the year ended
31 March 2017

Royalty

Printing charges

Power and fuel

Repairs and maintenance - machinery
Consumption of slores and spares

20, I[ncrease in inventories of finished goods amd work in progress

364,290 125,377
4,753,790 8,805,091
2,751,012 1,898,238
1,072,887 1,768,368
3,568,790 6,506,063

12,510,769 19,163,137

For the year ended
31 hhwch 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Invenlonices at the cnd of (he year
Sen finished goods (reler note 6)
Stores and sparcs {rcfer nole 6}

lnventories at (he beginning ol the ycar
Semi finished goods
Stores and zpaics

Increase in inventories

21, Selling andl distribution expcoses

3,384,804 1,195,653
4,046,542 4,354,002
7,631,346 7,549,745
3,195,643 -
4,354,092 3,581,251
7,549,745 3,581,251
{(81,601) (3,968,494}

For the year ended
31 Warch 2018

For (e year ended
31 Mawch 2017

Freight and cartage expenses
Business promotion expenses

22, Ewnployec benefits expense

3,172,620 3,343,343
250,000 909,821
3,122,620 4,233,164

For the year endcd
31 March 2018

For the yenr coded
31 March 2017

Salarics, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity cxpense {refer note 30)

Stafl welfare expenses

23. Depreciation and amordzation expense

16,760,476 16,731,551
1,288,838 1,255,709
871,398 619,503
575912 1,012,879
19,496,624 19,619,642

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year cnded
31 ¥arch 2017

Depreciation of property, plast and equipineot
Amortization of inlangible assels

2,897,172 3,223,614
85978 244,154
2,983,150 3,467,768
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24, Finance cosl

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Far the ycar ended
31 March 2017

Interest - others
Bank charges
Loan processing fee

2

o

. Other expenses

2,488,025 8,707,089
158,815 2,574
277,848 2875

2,924,688 8,712,538

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Outsource services

Rent

Repairs and imnMenance - building
Insurance

Travelling and eonveyance
Coimmunication eost

Security clarges

Printing and slalionery

Legal and professional [ee

Corporate gocial responsibility (refer note 39)
Payment to audilors (reler defails below)
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditor

9,640,934 8,861,527
2,711,031 2,900,129
1,365,329 1,211,411
371,620 461,870
885,384 2.341,512
139,618 160,914
1,139,192 1,214,796
429,144 45,012
968,581 524,738
1,250,000 1,000,000
879,308 875,984
269,332 352,202
20,053,473 19,950,095

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Far the year ended
31 Mavch 2017

As auditor:

Andit fee 826,000 817,302
Oul of pockel cxpense 53,308 58,682
879,308 875,984
26. Compuncafs of Qiher Comprehensive Income (OC1)
The disaggregation of changes in olher comprehensive income by cach type of equily is shown below:
During the vear ended 315t March 2018
Relained enrnings Total
Re-measunnent gamns/{losscs) on defined benelit ptans 212,401 212,401
Tax iimpact on re-measurement gains/{losses) on dedined henciit plans {58,522) {58,522}
153,879 153,879
During the year ended 315t March 2017
Retrined earnings Talal
Re-measurment gais/(losses) on defined benelit plans (344,937 (344,937)
Tax impaet on re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined Lienefit plans 119,376 119,376
(225,561) (225,561)

21. Barning per shave (EPS)

Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are caleulaied by dividing the profit for the year attributable to eqoity holders by 1he weighted average mumber of Equity shares

outslanding during the year,

Dilnted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for Lhe year atibulable 1o equity liolders by the weighted averape munber of cquity shares
outstauding dnring the year plus (he weighted average number of eqnity shares that would be issued on couversion of all dilutive potential eqaity shares inlo

cquity shares.

The following rellects (he incotne and share data usad in the basic and diluted EPS compulations

For (he year ended
31 March 2018

For the yenr ended
31 March 2017

Profit aticibutable 1o equily bolders of the company
Weighted average number of equity shares used for compuling Eaming per Share (Basic & Diluted)

Basic EPS (absolute value in INTt)
Diluted BPS {absolute value in TNR)

-,

32,937,786
12,000

2,745
2,745

39,037,916
12,000

3,253
3,253
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28a. [nconie iaxes

TFor the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 Muoreh 2017
Tucome tax charged to statement of proiit and loss
Currenl income tax charge 7,374,446 15,413,984
Inicome lax adjustment related to earlicr year 112,051 -
Delerred Lax charge 837,238 989 467
T 8,323,755 16,403,451
Tneome tax charged to other comjprehensive income
Expenses (benefit) on re-measuraient gainf{loss) on defined benefit plans 58,522 (119,376}
58,522 (119,376)

28b. Reconciliation of lax expense and the acconnling profit multiplicd by India’s domestic lax rate for 31 March 2018 aad 31 March 2017:

Tor the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Aecounting profit before tax 41,261,541 55,441,367
Accounting profit hefore income (ax 41,261,541 55,441,367
At slalntory income tax rate of 27.55% (31 Mareh 2017: 33.06%) 11,367,555 18,328,516
Exeinpl income under section 80IC ’ (3,184,986} (2,991,271}
Non-dednetible expenses 344,375 330,600
Basis difference (hat will reverse during tax holiday period (98,177) 166,108
Otlers (105,012) 569,098
Income (ax expense reported m (he statemenl of prolil and loss §,323,755 16,403,451

(s space fas been intentionally Ieft blank)
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29 Significant accounting jndgements, ¢stimates aud assumptions

The preparation of the Compawy’s financial stalements in conformily with the Indian Accommting Standards reqmires management to make judgeinents, estimates and
agsnptions that affect the reported awnounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying diselosurcs (mcloding contingent liabilities), The
managruent believes that the eslimates used in preparation of the financial stalemenis are prudent and reasonalde. Uneerlainty about these assumplions aud estunales
could result in ontconies that reqnire a material adjustiment to the carrying aount oFassels or liabilities affeered in fiture periods.

Jodgemenis

In the process ol applying the Company’s accouoting policies, management has tnade the lollowing jundgements, which have the most sipnifieat cfitet on the
amounts ececopuised in the finaneial statements:

Operating lease coomiments — Company as a lessee

The Company has enlered mlo lease agreements with lessor and has detennined, based on an evaluation of the tenns and conditions of the arranagements, sueh as Lhe
lease lenn not constituting a mujor part of the economic ife of the conunercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it does not retains Lhe significant risks and
rewards of owuership of these properties and accoumts for the conlracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions goncerning the fulure and other key sources of estimation uncertamty at the reporting date, (hat have a significant risk of causing a inaleral
adjustrnent 1o the carmying amounts of assels and liabilities within the next financial year, are deseribed below, The Cowpany based its asswnplions and eslimates on
parainelers available when the [inancial statemenls were prepared. Existing circwnstances and assumptions aboul fiiharre developments, however, may change due (o
narkel changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assuniptions when they oceur. Estimates and
nnderlying assumpticns are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estiinales arc recognised prospectively.

Taxes

Deferred lax assels are recognised to the extent it is probable that laxahle profits wili be available apainst which the losses can be utiliscd. Significant manageiment
Judgenent is required to delermine the amount of deferred tax assels that can be recoguised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future (axable profits
together witlt future tax planning stralegjes.

Defioed benefit plans (gratwity)

The cast of the defined benefil gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligalion are determined using actuarial valnations. An actuacial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in (he fature. These include e delennination of the diseownl rate, firture salary micreases and
morlality rales, Due lo the complexities involved in the valnation and its long-term nature, a defined heoefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assurnptions are reviesved at cach reporiig date.

‘The paramceter most sobject Lo change is the discount rate. [n determining the appropriate discount mie, the management considers the interest rates of government
honds with tlerm that correspond with the expected term of the defined bencfit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those morality tables tend Lo ¢hange only at interval in response (o denlographic changes. Future
salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected firture inflalion rates for the respeclive countries,

Further details about gratnity obligalions are given in Note 30

Proyision for decommissinning
In measuring the provision for site tesloration obligation, the Company uses the lechnical estimales lo detenune the expeeled eost of dismautling and removing (he
improvement or infrastructure for properties under lease. Discount rale are detenmined hased on the goverument bond rate of a similar period as the Habitity.

Pravision for trade receivable .

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated al their nowinal value as reduced by approprale allowances for eslinaled irrccoverable amoumts.
Estunated irrccoverable amounts arc based on (he ageing of (he recetvable balances and hislorical expericnce adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Tndividnal
trade receivables are written off when inanagement deems them nol o be collectible. For delails of allowauce for doubtful debis nlease refer Nole 5B.

Impairment of nun-financial psseis
The carrying amounts of the Comnpany’s non-financial assels, other (han deferred lax assels, arc reviewed at the end of each reporting period (o delenuine whether
there is any indication of impainoent. [Funy sucl: indication exists, len the assct’s recoveralle amount is estimated.
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{ 30, Gratnity and oilier post- employment henelits plan

The Company has an untfimded defined henelil gratuity plan. Under e pratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuily on
deparlure @ |5 days of last drawn salary for each completed ycar of service. The lollowing Lahles snmmarize (he components of nel benefit expense recognised in the
i ) statement of nrofit and loss and amounls recommized in lhe balance sheet [or Gratity Plan.

Stalement of Prolit & Loss account

Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee cost:
! For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2007
i Currenl service cosl 270,218 264,108
’ Past service cost 434,818 -
Interest cost on defined obligation 166,362 103,190
; Acqnisition/Business Combination/Divestiture (Refer nole ‘a' below) - 252,205
: 871,398 619,503

Amonnt recognised in Other Compreliensive Income:

For the year ended  For the year ended

) 3 Mareh 2018 3 March 2017
i
: Actuacial {gains) / losses on obligation {212,401) 344,937
: (212,401) 344,937
i
: Balance sheet
Changes in the present value of fhe defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Far the year ended  Tor the year ended
‘ 31 Mayeh 2018 31 March 2017
. Opening defined benefit obligation 2,299,146 1,572,062
i Carreat service cosl 270,218 264,108
Past service cost 434 818 -
L Interest cosl 166,362 103,190
g Benefits paid ) (143,592) (237,356)
) Acquisilion/Business CombmatiowTvestiture {Refer note 'a' below) - 252,205
. Aetuarial (gaing) / losses on obligation (212,401) 344,937
? Closing defined benefit ohligatinn . 2,814,551 2,299,146
. Corrent Portion 48,619 40428
H Non - Current Poriion 2,765,932 2,238,721
N The economie and demographic nssumptions nsed in determining gratuity dbligations for the company’s plans are shown belpw:
i For the year ewled  For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
i Disconnt rate 7.70% 7.30%
3 Expected rate of return on assets NA. N.A
Expected rale of salary increase 6% 6%
Retirement age (in years) 60 years 60 years
Employee wmover:-
. Scrvice upio 5 years 5% 5%
‘I Service above S years 1% 1%
Mortality rate LALM (2006-08) [ALM (2006-08)
5 Ulianale Ulrimate
i
The estiinates of fulure salary mcreases, cousidered in actnarial valvation, take account of iidlation, seniority, promotion and other relevant lactors, snch as supply and
y deman in the employment markel.
' The expecled coniribntion for next annual reporting period is Rs. Nit (31 March 2017: Rs. Nil)
1 The impact of sensitivity analysis due to changes in the sipnificanl acarial assumptions on the defined benelit obligniions is given in below rable:
Change in For the year ended  For theyear ended
i assumptinos 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Presenl valne of abligation al the en< of the repartmg period
Lmpact of changes in discount rate
: [mpact <ue to incrcase + 1% 3,062,831 2,540,964
% Tmpact due 1o decrease - 1% 2,600,661 2,093,358
Impact of changes in salary rate
i Timpact due to mcrense +1% 3,004,560 2,503,695
Iiopact due to deercase - 1% 2,595,538 2,125,278

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a inethod that extrapolates the inpact on delined benefit ohligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumplions ogeuring at the end of the repotmig period.

1 Note ¢
0, Gratuty hiability of Rs. 252,205/ of Neerja Jhunjhunwala as on Marel 31, 2016 hns been shown as a transfer in to Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limiled Foin §
Chnad and Company Limited,

H
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31.

32,

Leases
Operaling lease: com pany as lessce

The Cowpany has taken machinery for office nse under cancellable operaiing lease agreewments. The tolal lease remtals recognized as nm expense during the yeer under
(e above lease agreements agaregates te Rs. Nil (31 March 2017: Rs 337,500, 1 April 2016: Rs 2,025,000), There are no resirictions imposed by the lease agreements,
There are no sub leases.

The Company has laken premises for Factory use under operating Yease agreements. The total lease rentals recognized as an expense during e year nnder e above
leasc agreemenls aggregates to Tts 2,710,0311 (31 Mnrch 2017: Rs 2,900,129; 1 April 2016 Rs 3,101,707). There arc no restrictions imposed by the lease agreements,

There are ne sub leases.

Furthier minimnm rental payable under non-cancellable operating lease ace a3 follows ;

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 Bharch 31,2017 April 1, 2016
Wilhin one year 1,355,656 1,355,656 1,355,656
Alter onc ycar bat not more (han five years [,468,627 2,824,283 4,179,939

Aller five years - - -

Related parly disclosnre

0} Names of related parties and related porty velationship
Related parties where control exists :
Holding Cempany 5 Chand and Company Limited {Formerly 8 Chand and Company

Private Limiled)
Related parties with wbom transaciions have {aken place during ithe year
Tellow subsidiaries Vikas Publishing Honse Private Linited
Salari Dipital Edneatiou Initialives Privale Limnited
New Saraswali House (India) Private Limited
D) 5 Digilal Private Litviled

Enterprisc over which KMP or Iheir relatives exercise Smaariivity Labs Private Limited
Key Wanagement Persormel Wt Himanshu Gupta, Dircetor
Mrs Savita Gupla, Directlor

Mr Dinesh Kumar Thnnjhnuwala, Dircetor
Mis Neerja Jhmnjlmuwala, Whole time Director

(1his space has heen inetionaily {eft bank)
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b) Transactions with the velnted parties {Amoant in Rs.)
. Year Halding Fellow Enterpl:lse ovu.:' which K,I“P or ey managewent
Nature of transactions e e thejr velatives cxercise Total
Ended Compnny subsidiaries . . . persomel
significant influence
Printing charges pnid
Vikas Publishing House Prvale Limited 31 ivlarch 2018 - 4,753,790 - 4,753,790
31 March 2017 - 8,805,091 - - 8,305,091
Reat paid
3 Chand and Company Limiled 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 337,500 - - - 337,500
Lonn given during the yenr
D 5 Digilal Pvi Lid 31 March 2018 - 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000
31 March 2017 - - - - -
Interest income
D S Digital Privale Limited 31 March 2018 - 1,228,298 - - 1,228,298
31 March 2017 - - - - -
Safari Digital Education Inifiatives Privale Liimted 3| March 2018 - 28,224,266 - - 28,224,266
31 March 2017 - 25,508,168 - - 25,508,168
Remuneration lo direclors
Nirmala Gupta 31 March 2018 - -
31 darch 2017 - - - 800,000 800,000
Himanshu Gupta 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - 250,000 230,000
Gaurav Kumer Jhonjhnuwala 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - 200,000 200,000
Neerja Jhunjhouwala 31 March 2018 - - - 3,600,000 3,600,000
31 March 2017 - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sates/ Jobr Work
S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 132,544,551 - - - 132,544,551
. 31 March 2017 | 206,297,499 - - - 206,297,499
New Saraswati House (India) Privaie Limited 31 March 2018 - 16,696,574 - - 16,696,574
31 March 2017 - 44,455,717 - - 44,455,717
Vikas Pnblishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 157.45) - 157451
31 March 2017 - - - - -
Hale af paper/consumables
Vikas Publishing House Private Limiled 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - 1,375,035 - - 1,375,035
Purchase of paper/consumnbles
Vikas Publishing [Touse Private Liited 31 March 2018 - 20,256,340 - - 20,256,340
31t March 2017 - - - - -
Sale of fixed assels
Vikas Publishing House Privaie Limiled 31 warch 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - 6,025,676 - - 6,025 676
Purchnse of fixed nssets
Vikas Puhlishing Iouse Private Litnited 31 March 2018 - 3,100,000 - - 3,100,000
31 March 2017 - 6,974,281 - - 6,974,281
Corperate Guarantee (nken
3 Chand and Company Limiled 31 Mbarch 2018 37,146,069 - - - 37,146,069
31 March 2017 38,068,946 - - - 38,068,946
Corporate Guarantee given
S Chand and Company Limited 31 March 2018 150,257,300 - - B 130,257,300
31 March 2047 71,704,884 - - 71,704,884
¢} Balance ontstanding {Amount in Rs.)
N o Enterprise over which KMP or
Year Ended Halding B?Il?\v- their relztives exercise Key mnnagement Total
Compnany subisidinries . . N personnel
significant influence
Treade reccivabie
S Chand and Company Limited* 31 March 2018 153,004,622 - - - 153,004,622
31 March 2047 152,672,544 - - - 152,672,544
1 April 2016 247,309,604 - - - 247,309,604
New Saraswati House [ludia) Private Limiled* 31 Marcli 2018 15,761,276 - - 15,763,276
3} March 2017 - 40,213,127 - - 40,213,127
1 April 2016 - 16,588,439 - - 16,588,439
Vikas Publishing House Privale Limiled* 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - 472,648 - - 472,648
| April 2016 - - - - -
Loan and adynnces
Sinartivity Labs Privale Limited 31 March 2018 - - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - - -
| April 2016 B - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
DS Digital Privale Limited 35 March 2018 - 26,105,47) - - 26,1054
31 March 2017 - - - - -
1 April 2016 - - - - -
Safari Thgital Educalion Iniliatives Privale Limiled 31 March 2018 - 260,096 454 - - 260,096,454
31 March 2017 - 235,202 214 - - 235,202,214
I Apnl 2016 - 212,667,862 - - 212,667,862
Trade payable
Vikas Pollishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 22,281,975 - - 22,281,975
31 March 2017 - - - - -
1 April 2016 - 2,512,418 - - 2,512418
Remuneration lo divectors payable
Neerja JThunjhnuwala 31 March 2018 - - - 300,000 300,000
31 iarch 2017 - - - 300,000 300,000
1 April 2616 - - - - -

*(ross up of provision for impainment allowance,
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3.

3s.

36.

37,

38.

39.

40,

Confingent liabilitics (to the extent not provided for)

31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017

Corporate Guarantne against cash credil facilily availed by Holding company {refer no 'a' below) 150,257,300 71,704,884
Income tax demand (refer nole b’ below) - 66,911,797

The Company has given guarailee to certain banks m respect of credil [acility availed by holding company

Guarantee given (o ln respeet to credit facility granted to Alaturity date Interest rate 31 March 2018 31 Maych 2017
HDFC Bank S Chand and Company Limited On demand 11.25% to 11.30% 150,257,300 71,704 884

. Nel of tax deposiled by the Company of Rs. Nil (31 March 2017: Rs. 8,000,000) against the above demand. Druring the year, the Company got favourable outcome in

respeel of above demand in appellate process. The departiment is in appeal befare the Ineome Tax Appellate Tribunal (1TAT),

Dues tn Micro, small and wmedium enterprises as defined wnder the MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has requested ils various suppliers, who may be the enterprises covered nuder the Micro, Sinall and Medium Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006, to
[umish the relevant registration cerfificate under tiat Act, bot the said information is yel (o be received till date; and hence, in absence of the saine, no speeific amount
of outstanding on accow of purchases made / scrvices oblained fiom such suppliers can be ascertamed.

Inmiported nnd mdigenous raw materials, coanponcoés and spare parts consumed

! . Indigenously
Raw Materials Impaorted abfained
Perceniage (%) Amount (Re.} Percentage (%) Anpunt (Rs,)
As al 31 Wlarch 2018 0% - 100% 78,609,208
Asg at 31 March 2017 0% - 100% 153,757,298

Disclosure required under Sec 186(d4} of the Cempanies Act 2013

Inciuded in loans and advance are cedaint loaus the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by See 186(4) of Comnpanies Act 2013:

Nane of the loanec Rate of Interest/ Secured/ 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Duc Date unsecured
Safan Digital Education [uiliatives Private Limited 12% p.af 3 years Unsecared 260,096,454 235,202,214
D S Digital Private Limiled 10.75% p.a./ 3 years Uusecured 26,105,471 -

The loans have been utilized tor meeting (hear working capilal requarements,

Scgment reporting

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that compauies report inforinalion about operating segments and related disclosures abour produets and services and
major customers. The Company’s operations pre-dominantly relate Lo bivding of beoks. The Chiel Operaling Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Comnpany’s
performance and allocales resowces based on anafysis of variovs performance indicators pectaining to business as a single segment. Accordmply, the ameunts
anpearing, io Lhe finnncial statements relate 1o the Comrany’s single business sepment,

Tuformation aboeut major customers
Revenue from 2 major cnstomers amounted (o Rs 149,241,125 aggrepating to 98.68% of iofal revenue (Rs 25,0753,216 agpregating 1o 98.73% duciug the year ended
31 Mareh 201 7).

Carporate Sociul Responsibility (CSR})

The Company has contributed Rs 1,250,000 (31 March 2017: Rs. 1,000,000) oul of (ke lotal contributable ancuut of Ry 2,300,894 (31 March 2017: Its 2,689,329) as
af’31 March 2018 in accordance with section 135 read with schedule VII to the Coinpanies Act, 2013 to a society imvolved in promoting education, ineluding special
cdneation, einployment enhanceinent and vocational skill specially among children and sindenls. Unspent amounl has not been provided i books.

Amalgamation Scheme laformation

The Holding Compmuy, S Chand and Company Limited had fiked Drafl Conposite Schieme of Armmgement on January 9, 2018, amongst Blackie & Sons (Calentta)
Private Limiled, Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited, DS Digital Pavate Limited Safari Digital Educalion Initialives Private Limited and S Chand and
Compaiy Limiled (Compauy) and their respective sharcholders and eredilors (Comnposite Scheme) with BSE Limited ('BSE" and National Stock Exchange of India
Liuited (NSEY under Regulatinn 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosnre Requirements) and Cireular no. CFOYDIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017
("SEBL Cirenlar). The § Chaud and Cormpany Lonited shall file 1he Schewe with MNational Compaty Law Tribunal {INCLT), post approval from BSE and NSE.
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41 Financial Instrumenls:- Financial rislk manngemenl objectives nad policies

The Company’s principal (nancial liabililies, comprises loans and borrowings, trade and other peyables. The main purposc of these financial liabilities is lo finance the Company’s
nperations. The Company's principal fivancial assets include invesiments in cquity shares and government securilies, advances (o relaled party, trade and olher receivables, security deposils,
cash and sheit-ierm deposils that derive direcltly from ils operations.

The Company is exposed to warkel risk, credil risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees lhe managemenl of these risks and advises on financial risks and (he
appropriale financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Board provides assurance 1o the shareholders that the Company’s financial risk aclivities are governed by appropriate
policies and procedures and (hat (inancial risks are identified, 1neasured and managed iu accordance willi the Coinpany's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Dircclors teviews and
acrees policies For manaaing each of (hese risks, which are snmmarised below.

. Moarkel risk

Macket risk is Lhe risk that the [air value of future cash flows of a financial instrumenl will flucluale because of changes in markel prices,

Market risk comprises three types of risk:-

a.) Inlerest rale tisk.

b.} currency risk and other price risk, such as equily price risk and

.} colamodity risk.

Financial instrumnents affecled by markel risk include loans and borroyings, investmentls, deposits. advances and derivative financial inslruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate 1o the posilion as at 31 karch 2018 and 31 March 2017,

The sensilivity analysis bave been prepared on the basis thal the amount of nel debt, (he ralio of floating {o fixed interest rates of the debt and derivalives and Lhe propostion of fimancial
instnumenis in foreign currencics are all constant in place al 31 March 2018.

The analyses exclude lhe impacl ol movemenls in markel variables on: (he earrying valnes of graluity and cther post-retirement obligations; provisions. The sensitivity of the relevanl profit or
loss ilem ig the elfect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

. Inleresl rate risk,

Interest rale risk is the risk that the fair value or firture cash Hows of a linancial ingtrument will Alucluate because of changes in markel interest rates. The Copany’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest raies relales primarily lo the Company’s long-leriu debl obligations wilh fixed interesl rates. The following lable demensirates he sensilivily lo 8 reasonably
possible change in interesl rates. YWilh all other vartables held constan, the Company's profit before tax is affected throagh (he impact on Hoaling rate borrowings, as follows:

Incrense/decrense
in basis poinls

Effect on prolil
belore inx

31 Mnrch 2018

Bormowings in Rs. +.5% 263,196
0.5% (263,196)

3 Mnrch 2017

Borrowings in Rs. +0.5% 190,345
-0.5% (190,345}

1 April 2016

Borrowings in Rs. +0.5% 428,553
-0.5% (428,555)

. Forcign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk thal the fir value or future cash flows ol an exposure will fluctuate becanse ol changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure Lo Ihe risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relales primarily (o the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominaled in a [oreign currency). The Company does nol have any
Torcign currency exposure as on the reporting date other than (he company's funclicnal currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is Lhe risk that counterparty will not mesl its obligalions under a [inancial instrament or cuslomer conlract, leading lo a financial loss. The Company is not exposed lo any
significant credit risk [rom ils operaling selivilies (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with baoks and financinl inslilutions, foreign exchange lransactions and other [inancial
instrnments. The ageinyg analysis of Irade receivahles {nel) s of lhe reporting dale is as follows:

Age Brockel Current @-18C davs pnst dwe 181-355 dnys pasl due | 366-730 dnys pnst due Mlore than 730 days Tolal
As at 31 March 2018 140,579,296 14,238,368 13,202,985 - - 168,020,648
Asat 31 Mareh 2017 125,610,136 67,151,204 - - 1.423 192,762,763
As at 1 April 2016 221,222,4d4 41,483,204 - 1,423 , 262,707,070

. Lignidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficully in meeling the obligations associated with ils finaucial liahilities that arc settled by delivering cash or nnother financial
assel. The Company’s objective is 10 mainiaip a balance Leiween continuily of funding and flexibility throngh the use of bank overdrafts, and bank loans. The Company's approach lo
managing liquidity to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity lo meel its linbility when 1hey are dae, under both normal and stressed condilions, withoul incurring
unacceplable logses or risking damage lo the Comnpany’s reputalion. The Company closely monilors its Liquidity position and deploys a robusi cnsh manegement systein. The Company
manages liquidity risk by mainlaining adequnle reserves, borrowing liabilities, by continuously moniloring forecasl and aclual cash flows, profile of [inancial assels and liabilities. It mainlain
adequals sources of [inancing including loans from banks at an optimised cost, The table below provides the delails reparding conlractual maturities of linancial liabilities,

Asnt Asal Asal
31 Mnrch 2018 31 Mnrch 2017 [ April 2016

On Tremnnd

- Hommowings 42,639,207 38068 946 §5,710,957
42,639,207 18,068,946 45,710,957

Less than 1 year

- Trede payables 64,152,391 74,632,160 56,118,514

- Olher financial liebilitics 3,669,585 1,200,000 500,000
67,821,976 25,832,160 56,618,574

More than 1 yenr

- Borrowings 7,030,415 - -

1,000,415 - -
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42 Cnpital management

For the purpose of (e Company’s capilal management, capilal includes jssued equity capital and all other equity reserves aitrihulable (o the cqnity helders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital manageinent is to maximise the sharcholder value,

The Company seeks 10 nainlain a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with Iigher levels of borrowings and the advaniages and security
alorded by a sound capital pesition. The primasy objective of the company's capital management is o inaxinise the shareholder valne.

The Company wmouitors capital nsing a gearing ratio, which is nel debt divided by total capital plus net debl. The Company’s policy is to keop the gearing railo
between 5% and 12%. The Company measnres underlying net debt as total liabilities, comnprising interest bearing leans and borowings, excinding any dues to
subsidiaries or group comnpauies loss cash and cash equivalents. For the purpese of capital management, Lotal capital includes issned equity equily capital, share
pretniven and all other reserves altiibwrable to the equity holders of the Company, as apolicable.

Company's adjusted uet debl to equity ratio as a1 31 March 2018 i as follow:

As at As af As at

Geaving Ratie 31 March 2018 _ 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Bomowings (Note 11) 49,669,622 38,068,946 85,710,957
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {Nolc 5D) (5,066,553) (203,252) {491,954
Adjusted Net debt (A} 44,603,069 37,865,694 85,219,003
Equity 718,485,126 685,393,461 646,581,106
Toinl equity (B 718,485,126 685,393,461 646,581,106
Total equily and net debt [C = (A+B)] ' 763,088,195 713,259,155 731,300,109
Gemring Rafio (A/C) 3.85% 5.24% 11.65%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capilal managemeunl, amongst other thiugs, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants atlached to lhe
interest-bearing loanz and borrowings (hat define capilal structure requireincnts. Breaches tn meetmy the fnancial coveuants would penimit the bank to immediately
call [oans and bonowings. There have been no breaches in e [inancial covenants of any nilerest-bearing loans and borrowing m the current period.

o changes were made m (he objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

(This space has been inientionally left blank)
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. 43 Foir value of linancial assets and lighilities

Set oui below, is a comparisen by class ol the carrying amownts and fair value of e company's [lnancials insiruments, other 1han those wilh carrying amounis (hal are reasonable approximalions of fir values:

31 dMarch 2018 31 Mavech 2017 1 April 20}6
FYTPL Amaortized cosl FYTOCH FVTPL Asartized casi FVTQC! FVTTL Amoriized cost FYTOCL

1 Assels

Non cutvent Enancial assels
. - Investments 143,270 205,718,435 - 174,870 206,750,035 - 115455 206,690,620 -
I - Loans - 287,286,392 - 235,989,533 - 214,538, 482 -
! - Other fmancial asses - 70,939 B 70,939 - 70,939 -
f Cwvent nancizl assets :
i - Trade receivables - 168,020,648 - - 192,762,763 - - 262,707,070 -

- Loans - 54,129 - - 152,329 - - 703,925 -
: - Cash and cash equivalents - 5,066,553 - - 203,252 - - 491,954 -
§ - Other financial assels - 6,810,313 - - - - - - -
. Liabilities
¢ Non Curveal Financial linbilities

- Borrawings 7,030,415 - - - o - - -
[ Cynvent fnancial liabilities

- Dorrowings - 42,639,207 - - 38,068,946 - - 25,710,557 -
. - Trade payables - 64,152,391 - - 24,632,160 - - 56,118,574 -
% - Other financial liabilities - 1,669,585 - - 1,200,000 - - 500,000 -

The folloing assamplions meiliods weve used to estimate the faiv valwes:

7.) The fair values of irade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets, tade payable and other current financial liebililies are considered to be same as thelr camying values due to their
short lerm aalure,

ii.) Fair value of quoled financial insiruments is based on quoled market price al Lhe reporling date.

1.} The camying ammouut oF other itews canied at amortized cost are reasonable approximation of their Fair value.

iv.} The Company classifies all its inencial assets and f ial liabilities Lo be measured al amartised cost. Hence the Company has nor classified ils financial insirumients into three levels of far valne nicasurements
hierarclyy in accordance wilh (he relevant Indian Accounting Standard.
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First-lime adoption of Ind AS

i.) These finuncial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2018, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For pedads np te and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
prepared its financial stalements in accordance with accounting siandards notified under section 133 of the Companies Acl 2013, read together with paragrapl 7 of the Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(Previous GAAT). Accordingly, the Cowpany has prepared financial siatements which comply wilh Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 harch 2018, together with (he comparative period data as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2017, as described in the snounary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these Auancial statements, the Compury's opening balance sheet was prepared as al | Apal

H 2018, the Compatty’s dale of Iransition te Tnd AS.

This nole explains exenplions availed by the Company in restaling ils Previous GAAP [nancial stalentents, including the balance sheet as at 1 Apdl 2016 and the financial statentends as at and lor the year
ended 31 March 2017,

Optional Exemptions Applied:
nd AS 101 allows firsi-lime adopters cerlain exemplions from the retrospeciive

pplication of ceriaii requi 5 under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions.

a.) Deemed cosl ef property, plaat snd egnipmeat and iniangible assets
Ind AS 101 permils a first-time adopler, where there is no change in funclional comency, 1o elect lo continue with the eamying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the [nancial
slatements as al Ihe date of transition Lo Ind AS, measured as per the previoas GAAP and use that as its desmed cost as al the date of Iansilion afler making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning
habilities. This exemption can also be used for inlangible assets covered by Ind AS 33 Intangible Assets. Accordingly, the Company lias elected 1o measure all of ils property, plant and equipment and
intangible assels al their previons GAAP carrying vaiuc as deemed cost at Lhe transition date,

b.) Investments in snbsidiavies
Ind AS 0] permils a first time edopler lo measure ils nvestmenl 1y subsidianes, associales and joint venture, at the date of transilion, al cost delermined in accordance with [nd AS 27 or deemed cost. The
deemed vost of snch invesinient shal) be it"s [air value at the Company's dale of Iransition 1o Ind AS, or Previous GAAP carrying amown at that date.

‘The Company tias elected (o measure its invesiment in snbsidiarics al the orevious GAAI” carrving amount as ils deemed cost on the transition dale.

i

Reconciliatinn belween Provions GAAP and Tnd AS

Following reconcilintions along with foot notes for ihe GAAP adjustinents is juserted:

- Reconciliation of equity as at | April 2016 (the dale of transilion to lid AS} (Annexure 1)
- Reconciliation of cqnity as at 31 darch 2017 (A neexure [In)

- Reconciliation of profit end loss for year ended 31 March 2017 (Annexure 11b}
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Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year cuded 31 Marvch 2018
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Aunexure 1- Reconcilintion of cquity as at 1 April 2016 (date of trausitiou to Ind AS)

(Amount in X)

TodAs

Foot notes Indian GAAP* Adiusbinent IndAS
Assets
Non-curreut assefs
Property, plant and equipment 20,749,792 - 20,749,792
Intangible assets 330,132 - 330,132
Financial assets
- Investinents L 206,592,165 98,455 206,690,620
-~ Loans 2 215,141,597 {603,115) 214538482
- Other financial assets 70,939 - 70,939
Other non-current assets 2 66,165,493 113,068 66,279,161
Deferred tax assets {net} 5 1,814,439 270,740 2,085,179
Total nou-current asscts 510,864,557 (120,252) 510,744,305
Current nssets
Inventories 8,438,040 - 8,438,040
Financial assets
- Trade reecivables dq 263,899,466 (1,192,396) 262,707,070
- Loans 2 306,000 397,925 703,925
- Cash and eash equivalents 491,954 - 491,954
Olher current assets 8,034,137 76,331 8,110,468
Total current assets 281,169,597 (718,140} 280,451,457
Total assety 792,034,154 (838,392) 791,195,762
Equity and liabilities
LEquity
Eqnity share capital 120,000 - 120,000
Other equity
- Relained earnings 593,099,498 (838,392) 592,261,106
- Other reserves 54,200,000 - 54,200,000
Total equity 647,419,498 (838,392) 646,581,106
Nou-current liahilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - -
Provisions 1,545,833 - 1,545,833
Total non envrent liabilitics 1,545,833 - 1,545,833
Cnyprent liabilities
Financial liabilitics
- Borrowings 85,710,957 - 85,710,957
- Trade payablcs 56,118,574 - 56,118,574
- Other financial liabilities 500,000 - 500,000
Provisions 90,541 - 90,541
Other current liabilities 648,751 - 648751
Total eurvent liabilities 143,068,823 - 143,068,823
Total equity aud liabilitics 792,034,154 (838,392} 791,195,762

(*Indian Gaap nambers have been regroupcd 1o conform to classifieatious as per Ind AS)
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Annexure [1a - Reconciliation of equity as at 31 Mareh 2017

(Amount in X)

TFnot notes

IndAs

Indian GAADP* Adjustment IndAS
Asscls :
Non-currenl asscts
Properly, plant and equipment 18,994,759 - 18,994,759
Intangible assets 85,978 - 85,978
Tinaneial assels
- Investmenis 1 206,592,165 157,870 206,750,035
- Loans 2 236,242,786 (253,248) 235,989,538
- Other financial assets 70,939 - 70,939
Other non-current asscts 2 81,614,248 80,483 81,694,731
Deferred tax assets (nct) 5 1,027,753 187,334 1,215,087
Total non-eurrent asscts 544,628,628 172,439 544,801,067
Current assets
[nventories 9,465,907 - 9,465,907
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 4 193,715,449 (952,686) 192,762,763
- Loans 2 37,330 114,999 152,329
- Cash and cash equivalents 203,252 - 203,252
Olher current assels 2 4,674,271 45245 4,719,516
Total current assets 208,096,209 (792,442) 207,303,767
Tatal assets 752,724,837 {620,003) 752,104,834
Equity and linhilities
Equity
Equity share capital 120,000 - 120,000
Other eqnity
- Relained earnings 631,693,464 (620,003) 631,073,461
- (tther reserves 54,200,000 - 54,200,000
Total equity 686,013,464 (620,003) 685,393,461
Non-currcut liabilitics
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - -
Provisions 2,258,721 - 2,258,721
Total nou current liabilities 2,258,721 - 2,258,721
Currenl liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 38,068,946 - 38,068 946
- Trade payables 24,632,160 - 24,632,160
- Other financial liabilitics 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Provisions 91,563 - 91,563
Otber currenl liabilities 459,983 - 459,983
Taotal eurrent liahilities 64,452,652 - 6,452,652
Tatal equity and liabilitics 752,724,837 (620,003) 752,104,834

(*Indian Gaap numbers have been regrouped to conform to classificaticns as per Ind AS)
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Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Lintited
WNotes to inancial stafemeuts for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U74899DL1571PTCO05776

Annexure IIb - Reeonciliatiou of profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2017

IndAs
F i %
Toot notes Indian GAAP Adiustment IndAS
I Reveume [rom operations 253,967 411 - 253,967,411
II Clberincome 1,2 ' 26,050,459 378,645 26,425,104
111 Total Income (411} 280,017,870 378,645 280,396,515
IV Expenses
Cost of raw matcrialg and components consumed 153,757,298 - 153,757,298
(IncreaseYdecrease m inventorics of fimished yoods and werk o progicss (3,968,494) - (3,968 494)
Pnbhication expenses 19,163,137 - 19,163,137
Selling and distribution expenses 4,253,164 - 4,253,164
Employee benefits expeuse 3 19,964,579 (344,937) 19,619,642
Finance cosl 8,712,538 - 8,712,538
Depreclalion and amortisation expense 3,467,768 - 3,467,768
Other expenses 2 19,873,246 76,849 19,950,095
Total expenscs 225,213,236 (268,088) 224,955,148
v Profit hefore tox (TF-TV) 54,794,634 646,733 55,441,367
¥I Tax cxpensc:
Cnrrenl tax 15,413,984 - 15,413,984
Dreferred (ax charge 786,684 202,783 989,467
Total tax cxpenscs 16,200,668 242,783 16,403,451
VYII Prolit for the year (V-VI) 38,593,966 443,950 39,037,916
Y111 O ther Comprehensive Income
- [tems that will nol be reclossificd Lo prefit or loss
Re-incasureinent pains/{losses) on detined benefit plans - (344,937 (344,937)
Tax inpael on re-raensureraent gains/(lossces) on defined benefit pians - 119,376 119,376
IX Total Compreheusive Income for the year (YIT+HVIII) . 38,553,966 218,389 38,812,355

Foomates o the veconciliation of cquity g at | April 2016 and 31 ¥arch 2017 and profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 are as helow:-
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Investments

Under previous GAAP, current inveslneuts were mensured at lower of Cost or tair vale. Under Ind AS these fnancials asscts are elassificd as FY'TPL and the changes i fair
value are recognised in stateinent of profit and loss, On the transition date, these Fnancial assets have been measurcd at their ir value which s higher/lower (hau its cost as per
previous GAAP, resulting in an increase/decrease m cartying value of the investments with eorresponding inerensefdecrease being recoguised m cquity.

Non ewrrent finoncial assels/ finaneial liabilities

Under previous GAAP, certain non-eurrent financial assets/ liabilities which were measured at cost/ best cstimale of the expenditure required to seltle the obligatinn, at the
balance sheel date williont eonsidering 1he ellect of discounting where as these are measured at the present value on the balance sheet date under Ind AS. Accordingly (he
Compmny has reeognised the adjustments to the respeelive carrymg ammount and the eonsequent impact on finance eost/ finanee meome dne to unwinding ol the discounting
impact, The corresponding impaet on the date ol transilion has been reeapmised in eauily.

Remeasnrmeut differences
Under previons GAAP, (here was no eoncept ol ather comprehensive meome and hence, previons GAAP profil is reconciled to totn] comprehensive meome as per Ind AS.

Under previous GAAP, (he remcasurmenis of the net defined benefit liability were recognised in the statement of profit ond loss however mder Ind AS, said remcasurment
differences net of the related tax impact are recoguised in the other comprehensive meome.

Trade veceivahles

Under previous (GAAP, the Company had crealed provision for impaimment of receivables only in respeet of speeific amount lor incurred Josses. Under Ind AS, hnpaimnent
allowance bas been detennined based on Expected Credit Loss model {ECL), Due to the ECL model, the Conpany iinpaired ils trade reeeivables as on | April 2016 and 31
Mareh 2017, which has been recopnised in the statement of profi( and loss.

Deferred Tax
Under Ind AS, the Cowmipany has recogniscd the conseqnential tax anplicalions on the impaci on accowl of adjusiments explained above.

Previous period figures
Previous ycar figures have been regrooped / reelnssified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classilication.

The accompanymyg notes arc an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our repert of even date

For S.R. Batlivoi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Doard of Directors of
ICAI Firmn Registration No. L01049%W/E300004 Nirja Pnblishers & Printers Private Limited -
Chartered Accouatants '

!
%M%M/ [
Savi W’M i har Gupta

per Yogesh Midha f

Partner Hugms

Mcembership No,: 94941 PR 00053988 DI :}}iﬁr)S‘iOi 5

[
Place : New Delhi A e 8
\ N

Date : 18 Mny 2018 ; ’Vﬂbx_ﬁ“ ;

ST




